
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 8TH OCTOBER, 2019 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.30 pm.   

This Meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Children’s Services Strategy   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

5 - 18 

4. Budget update for Scrutiny Committee   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

19 - 24 

5. Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board Annual Report 
2018/19  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

25 - 30 

6. Forward Work Programme 2019/20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

31 - 42 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 
 

 



  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: E Davies 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 
Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and 
Gentlemen 

Children’s Services Strategy 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides Scrutiny Committee with information about development and 

progress with Children’s Services Strategy.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1     That Scrutiny Committee receive this report and raise questions and challenge that   
          will lead to improvement.  
 
 

3.0    INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

In September 2018, Children’s Services provided Scrutiny Committee with an 

overview of the service strategy for improving the well-being of children and young 

people.  The strategy sets out our approach to the work linked to the Council's 

Statement of Wellbeing, and its Plan "Focus on the Future". The same strategy also 

responds to children’s services’ role in contributing to outcomes under the Cwm Taf 

Statement of Strategic Intent for Children, Young People and Families, and the 

Public Services Board Cwm Taf Well-Being Objectives. 

Legislative Context 
 

3.1 1The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 specifies that we must work 

to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by 

                                            
1
 Read the essential guide to the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Date Written 27th September 2019 

Report Author Annabel Lloyd 

Service Area Children’s Services  

Committee Date 8th October 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/sites/default/files/Guide%20to%20the%20WFGAct.pdf


2 
 

maximising our contribution to the Wellbeing Goals.  We must do this in accordance 

with the sustainable development principle, which means that we act in a manner 

that seeks to ensure the needs of the present are met without compromising the 

ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

3.2 There are 5 things that we need to do in order to show that we have applied the 

sustainable development principle.  The five things are: 

 Long Term 

 Preventative 

 Involvement 

 Collaboration 

 Integrated 

3.3 2The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 specifies that we must seek to 

improve the wellbeing of people who need care and support, carers who need 

support and for transforming social services in Wales.  The focus of this Act is on 

what matters to the person and how they can use their own strengths and resources 

to do those things, which is determined by an assessment that involves the person 

and the professional(s). The Act enhances the duty to collaborate in pursuit of early 

identification in order to prevent escalation of need.  

3.4 In order to improve wellbeing, local authorities, health boards and NHS trusts must 

work closely to ensure better integration of health and social care.  Local authorities 

and health boards must work together to assess care and support needs (and carer 

support needs) of the population in their area. As a result, they will identify what 

services are needed. 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  

 
4.1   Included below is a summary and update against each area of business under     

children’s services strategy.  The Strategy on a Page itself is included at Appendix 1. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  

 
5.1      The service strategy is directly related to the corporate vision statement included in         
           Focus on the Future that is included on our Strategy on a Page: 

 

 Children and young people are safe and healthy; 

 have the right help at the right time; 

 are supported to live with their family or close to home; 

 and have stable and successful lives. 
 

5.2   Further progress has been made in relation to Children’s Services’ strategy has 
developed considerably since the last update to Scrutiny Committee in March 2019.  
Each area of development is aimed at preventing escalation of need, improving the 

                                            
2
 Read the essential guide to the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 

Page 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents
http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/160127socialservicesacten.pdf


3 
 

wellbeing of vulnerable young people with care and support needs, and delivering 
budget efficiencies. Children’s services management team, relevant partners, service 
users and staff have been engaged in the development of the strategy and its related 
action plans. 

 
5.3 Children’s Services Strategy itself included the following components: 

 

 Earlier intervention to prevent escalation of need – making sure that 
Children and their families receive the right help at the right time to prevent 
unnecessary escalation of need. 

 

 Enhancing services at the edge of care – (Previously known as the Children 
Looked After Prevention Strategy) making sure intervention is evidenced based 
to prevent further escalation of need and risk; that where we need to look after 
young people we do so at the right time, ensuring every safe opportunity for 
care within the family network is fully explored. 

 

 Success, Stability and Transition –making sure that looked after young 
people and care leavers achieve stable and successful lives as a basis form 
where to transition into adulthood. 

 

 Strategy for Improving Performance: –making sure that we continually 
improve the services we deliver and our outcomes. 

 

 Workforce Strategy: ensuring   that we can successfully recruit qualified social 
workers; and that the service is staffed by colleagues who are well supported 
with the right values, qualifications and skills. 

 
5.4 Children’s Services Staff have highlighted the following values and principles as 

important to their ways of working and identity as a staff group: 

 We listen to young people, their families and colleagues 

 We step up and step down service but avoid stepping away too soon 

 We are positive and have a ‘can do’ attitude 

 We embrace change 

 Continuous improvement lies at the heart of our work – we welcome challenge 

 We want to innovate and be leaders in practice 

 We are passionate about making a difference for future generations of Merthyr 

Tydfil families 

 

5.5 Included below is a summary of progress against the Children’s Services’ developing 

strategy: 

Page 7



4 
 

Key Project   and business areas   Progress 

Earlier intervention to prevent 

escalation of need - Right Help at 

Right Time 

 IAA 

 Young Carers 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub 

 Step up Step down and MIA Co-

ordination 

 Young Carers 

 

 

 

 The Early Help Hub is now live with a formal launch planned for November.  

 

The EHH multi-disciplinary Steering group will oversee and track progress with: 

 Enhancing partner engagement in IAA 

 Improving the digital information that is available 

 Implementation of regional Carers strategy in relation to young carers 

 Develop the pathway to support services for families with Children with Disabilities 

 

Next Steps  

 

 Settle in the Early Help Hub and track improvement plan, making improvements as data 

and feedback from family experiences  

 

Enhancing Services at the Edge 

of Care – Right Decision at Right 

Time 

 

(Previously Children Looked After 

Prevention Strategy)  

 Supporting Change Team 

 Multi-agency Risk Assessment 

Framework (MARAF) 

 

 
 

Appointments have been made to the Supporting Change (SC) Team which is now taking cases 

identified at the SC Panel. The tender for family group conference has been finalised.  The team 

will deliver the authority’s duty under part 9 of the Social Services and Well-Being Act to provide 

and Integrated Family Support Service. The evidence base to the re-design has been reviewed 

and we will meet later in the month to commence planning for an evaluation one year on.  

 

The work of the team will support the service in making the right decision at the right time and 

notable look for opportunities to make lasting changes that prevent entry into the looked after 

system. Where a child needs to become looked after, this team will support the service in making 

that decision earlier in childhood when there are better outcomes for children looked after. 

Building on the learning from 18-19, we are keen to improve how we use the Public Law Outline.  

 

 

P
age 8



5 
 

Next Steps 

 

 Settle in the New Edge of Care Team and track improvement plan and outcomes  

 Increase our use of the MARAF 

 Continue the work of the QA Framework 

 

P
age 9



6 
 

Strategy for Stability, Success and 

Transition   

 

 National Fostering Framework: Foster 

Carer recruitment and retention; 

Fostering Well-being  

 Regional Adoption Collaboration 

 Corporate Parenting 

 Education for Looked after young people 

 Pathway to Work 

 Care Leavers’ Strategy 

 Therapy (Multi-agency Permanence 

Support Service MAPSS) 

 Placement Commissioning Strategy 

 The work of the regional front door for fostering has led to a small number of new 

assessments for foster carers. Chief Officers across the Council have agreed to work 

together in pursuit of a revised offer for foster carers which we hope will build on the 

positive changes we are seeing. 

 

It is early days, but our Fostering Well-being champions are working well supporting 

other carers and our recruitment ambition. 

 

The new service for Care Leavers is in place and we will sign off our Care Leaver’s 

strategy at Corporate Parenting Board in December. We are preparing our annual report 

for CPB and can bring that to this Committee for scrutiny. 

 

We are working on improved arrangements for transition planning and will finalise the 

Protocol in November.   

 

New grant funding (ICF) has been identified to support care experienced to work as 

outline in the Pathway to work. This will be presented to Chief Officers in October with a 

view to identifying traineeships and work experiences within the Council. 

 

We are aware that a high number of our looked after young people require support with 

education and we are preparing for the significant impact of the ALN reforms. We are 

very proud indeed of young people’s achievements and a celebration event is planned 

for November. 

 

The service is working through the action plan for our Placement Commissioning 

Strategy and tangible progress is being made on developing suitable housing options for 

care leavers. We have done less well on increasing the numbers of foster carers in 

county and in establishing an emergency residential provision, however plans are in 

P
age 10



7 
 

place. 

 

 A market engagement meeting with potential providers for a therapeutic service for 

looked after young people is planned for September.  This will assist in improving the 

specification for the service which we plan to go to tender on shortly afterwards. 

 

The annual report for the Regional Adoption Collaboration will be brought to this 

Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Next Steps   

 

 Continue the work of the regional fostering front door 

 Implement the action plan for the Care Leavers’ Strategy 

 Finalised revised transition arrangements 

 Implement the Placement Commissioning Strategy action plan 

 Implement the action plan for the Pathway to work 

 Complete Corporate Parenting Board Annual Report and bring it to Scrutiny 

Committee 

Strategy for Improving Performance 

 

 Participation and the Young Person's 

Voice 

 Partnership Working 

 Policies and Procedures 

 Performance Review 

 Quality Assurance Framework 

 Outcome Focused Work 

Performance for 18-19 was good with all but 2 areas reporting improvement on the year 

before. Areas for focus relate to minimising unplanned school moves and improving the 

employment, education and training take up for care leavers. 

 

Care experienced young people have continued to work with Voices from Care at the 

Merthyr Forum and have opportunities to link into other participation events.  We have 

also supported dome looked after young people in keeping in touch after their positive 

experience of Jamie’s Farm. 

 

P
age 11



8 
 

 Independent Reviewing Service 

 Self- Evaluation and annual council 

report  

The quality assurance framework has produced considerable focus for both recognition 

of good work and improvement.   The service reported on positive outcomes and service 

user voice in the Self Evaluation Report brought to the last Scrutiny Committee. A 

headline summary  of key  learning themes during the past year include: 

 

 Need to continue  to work with staff to achieve consistent adherence to national, 

regional and local protocols and procedures 

 Need to make changes to prevent delay in transferring cases between teams 

 Need to improve the  escalation and resolution  process  

 Need to continue  work that supports sound judgement and avoidance of the rule 

of optimism 

Prior reports have been provided to Scrutiny Committee in relation to the post Care 

Inspectorate Wales Action Plan. Whilst we recognise that there are areas of practice 

requiring continuing improvement to achieve a consistently good standard, that plan has 

been signed off. We have revised the Quality Assurance Framework for 19/20 to 

increase the involvement of practitioners in peer review and, ensuring that families’ 

voices are afforded substantial importance in driving changes.  

 

An area of work that has continued into 2019/20 is a plan in relation to one area of the 

service where we most need to provide support. Resources have increased in that part 

of the service, new staff have been recruited, and training has been provided. Staff  

have been involved in a culture- change journey that has included both team and 

individual work.  The improvement plan  is tracking the changes that are required to 

achieve consistently good standards in doing the basic things well, and progress has 

been made with further assessment of that progress taking place in the winter ahead of  

P
age 12



9 
 

a proposed step down form the action plan subject to the objectives being achieved .  

 

In addition to our work on regional partnership fora including Safeguarding Board, 

Region Partnership Board, Violence against Women and Sexual Violence Steering 

Group we are engaging with South Wales Police on their early action programme, and 

Local Health Board in relation to adoption medicals, CHC for children looked after and 

emergency responses for young people in distress. 

 

The Quality Assurance Framework is delivering important work in highlighting learning 

themes which are being translated into improvement.  This has included identifying the 

need for improved use of the MARAF.   

 

Scrutiny Committee recently received our self-evaluation assessment of ‘adequate’, and 

acknowledging the challenges we will work towards a future assessment of ‘good’. 

 

Next steps 

 Ensure that young people’s voices inform service improvements  

 Continue the work of the Quality Assurance Framework and corporate self-

evaluation 

 Continue to monitor and improve performance 

 Implement the national protection procedures 

 

Workforce Strategy 

 Recruitment 

 Retention 

The service has recently been able to recruit successfully and during 19-20 we are able 

to focus more on staff retention and skills. 

 

Next steps: 

 Training needs analysis 

P
age 13



10 
 

 Caseload  management  

Strategy for Sustainable Children’s 

Services  

 Long Term efficiencies 

 Short Term efficiencies 

There is a strong relationship between effective improvement of outcomes for people 

with care and support needs and effective use of resources. During 18-19 we finalised 

this piece of work that documents how our service strategy and the re-configuration was 

designed to deliver sustainability in the context of reducing resources; some examples 

of those long term efficiencies are: 

 Early Help Hub – reduce avoidable escalations to statutory children’s services 

 Supporting Change – reduce numbers of children looked after and age at which 

child becomes looked after 

 Placement Commissioning Strategy Regional Front Door Fostering – increase 

supply of LA foster carers and local lower cost provision 

 Therapy – meet need in looked after system and reduce avoidable escalations  

 Workforce – reduce reliance on agency staff 

 

The service has also delivered the following in year efficiencies: 

 

 Closer to Home project – looking for opportunities to step down young people 

in high cots provisions to lower cost ones in ways that is in line with their well-

being  

 Supporting Change – efficiency linked to providing local rather than regional 

services 

 Continuing Health Care - examples of shared costs with LHB for some young 

people with CHC needs 

 Vacancy management  

 Escalation avoidance at Placement Panel 

 Family First - placement with  safe relatives as opposed to foster care 

wherever possible 

P
age 14



11 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Merthyr Tydfil Children's Services plans to be a high performing service, working in 

co-production with partners and families, providing services within budget that are 

preventative, reduce risk, and increase resilience. 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Each project has a prioritised action plan which is updated quarterly with an annual 

review at year end. Action plan are linked to our performance management 
framework and the Council’s policy Focus on Performance. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 This area of business is located in the following wellbeing objective: 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health 

 

 
Lisa Curtis Jones  
CHIEF OFFICER FOR SOCIAL SERVICES 
EXECUTIVE’S NAME 
TITLE 

PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR’S NAME 
PORTFOLIO TITLE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Children’s Services 
Strategy Scrutiny 
Committee Report  

 

September 2018  Civic and Council website  

 
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 
No  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Children and young people are safe and                               
healthy; have the right help at the right time; are 

supported to live with their family or close to home; 
and, have stable and successful lives. 

Components 
 

 

EARLY INTERVENTION 
AND PREVENTION (EIP) 

Children and their families 
received the right help at 
the right time to prevent 

escalation of need.  

 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Target Achieved Target Achieved Target Achieved Target Achieved Target 

 

Target 

 

Target 

 

LW: KPI Percentage of re-registrations of children on Local Authority Child 
Protection Registers (CPR) within a 12 month period (Measure 27)  

  N/A 21.3  N/A 4.67 0 
6.67 

(12/180) 
0 0 0 

LW: KPI 
 

   Percentage of children supported to remain living within their family 
(Measure   
   25) 

  N/A 66.2 N/A 77.6 >78 
72.5 

(522/720) 
>78 >78 >78 

EIP Percentage of children that received the right information or advice when they 
needed it  N/A 

42 
(38/91) 

N/A 
80 

(28/35) 
N/A 

70 
(65/93) 

N/A N/A N/A 

EoC / SST No. of Children Looked After at 31st March * N/A 141 * N/A 145 * N/A 156 * N/A 198 * N/A * N/A * N/A 

EoC No. of Children on the Child Protection Register as at 31st March * N/A 101 * N/A 113 * N/A 123 * N/A 132 * N/A * N/A * N/A 

EIP / EoC 
 

Percentage of assessments completed for children within statutory timescales 
(Measure 24) 

N/A 97 87 ≥ 90  94.14 
(915/972) 

≥ 90  ≥ 90  ≥ 90  

SST Percentage of Children Looked After in Cwm Taf (New local) **N/A 60.10 
(119/198) 

**N/A **N/A **N/A 

EoC / SST Average age of Children at date of becoming looked after (BLA) (new local) 
**N/A 6.5 

(92) 
**N/A **N/A **N/A 

SST The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment at 
12 months after leaving care (Measure 34a) 

45 70 ≥ 70 52.63 
(10/19) 

≥ 70 ≥ 70 ≥ 70 

SST Percentage of looked after children on 31 March who have had three or more 
placements during the year (Measure 33) 

9.22 11.72 13.46 ≤ 10 12.63 
(25/198) 

≤ 10 ≤ 10 ≤ 10 

HEAD OF SERVICE: 
Contributors: 
 

EIP and EoC: 
IAA / MASH / Intake / Merthyr Family Centre / 
Safeguarding 
 

SST: 
Family Support / LAC / Fostering and 
Adoption / Care Leavers / Safeguarding 

Children Services 
How will Merthyr Tydfil CBC work? 

EDGE OF CARE (EoC) 
Evidence based specialist 

services prevent 
escalation of risk and 

need. 

STABILITY, SUCCESS AND 
TRANSITION (SST) 

Children Looked After and 
care leavers  achieve 
stability and success. 

*  Target setting is incompatible with our statutory duties. 
**New local PI – no baseline established 

Appendix 1 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Budget update for Scrutiny Committee  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is to provide an update on the social services budget. We are currently in 

Month 6 of the budget and at end of Quarter 2 2019/20 budget. The Month 4 position 
has been reported to date, which is included in this report. Last year we saw 
unprecedented growth in Social Services due to high demand in service delivery. 
There were increases in Children Looked After and within domiciliary care.  

 
1.2.1 In the past few years social services have been able to contribute to the efficiencies 

programme and we have worked with finance and business support team to consider 
efficiency savings now and in the future. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 
 
 
 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Scrutiny committee members have requested that a report be presented to scrutiny 

looking at the overall Social Services budget and the areas of likely overspend. The 
report highlights the summary statement of the General Fund Revenue Budget for 

Date Written 25th September 2019 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones  

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 8th October 2019 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



2019/20. Also provided is the areas of the budget that are overspending with the 
plans we have in place to try and mitigate this overspend.  
 

3.2 Budgets within social care can be unpredictable in the sense of the Looked after 
children rate can change, adults requiring support for their care needs. Safeguarding 
adults and children will always be a priority and these costs cannot be avoided. We 
will endeavour to support children, families and adults within the community and their 
own homes where possible but in some cases this is not possible. 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 We continue to face financial pressures and been working hard to achieve savings 

the Council needs whilst doing our best to ensure that the services we provide to you 
are not adversely affected. Last year Social Services were not in a position to 
contribute to the efficiency programme due to the increase in demand in the service.  

 
4.2 We have used the Integrated Care Fund over the past two years to plan and develop 

projects working across the region which will directly impact the public and provide 
better services. This funding has allowed the development of new initiatives like the 
stay well @ home service, which will reduce the delayed transfers of care from 
hospital and have better outcomes for the population of Cwm Taf. 

 
4.3 There has been increased demand for children’s services, including increased 

demand for looked after placement and high cost placements  
 
4.4 The anti-poverty steering group was set up to review and monitor the various grants 

that are available in Merthyr Tydfil, with a view to looking at the cross cutting themes 
between the grants and ensuring no duplication of service. Also looking at ways to 
improve preventative work with a view to decreasing the impact on statutory services 
where possible. 

 
4.5 A lot of our work is undertaken on a collaborative and regional basis which assists 

with cost pressures and assists with resilience of services. 
 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
 General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 (As at 31st July 2019) 

People and Performance Directorate 
Social Services 

 
 

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (As at 31 July 2019) Table 1 
People and Performance Directorate 
    

  Estimate Outturn Year End 
Projection 

  
Summary 31-Jul-19 Month 4 Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

            
Social Services           
Social Care Services and Recharges           
Quality & Regulation Services 102 34 103 1 0.98 

Page 20



Receivership 28 0 28 0 0.00 

  130 34 131 1 0.77 

            
Duty, IAA & ACT Compliance           
Out of Hours/Emergency Duty Services 71 -2 63 -8 -11.27 
IAA Duty Services 70 21 70 0 0.00 

  141 19 133 -8 -5.67 

            
Early Intervention and Assistance Services           
Carers Network 196 34 196 0 0.00 

  196 34 196 0 0.00 

            
Social Services Collaborative Partnerships           
Integrated Community Equipment Store (ICES) 169 124 169 0 0.00 
Cwm Taf Social Care Workforce Development 146 0 146 0 0.00 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending Services 280 -32 278 -2 -0.71 
Vale, Valleys & Cardiff (VVC) Regional Adoption Group 189 0 193 4 2.12 
Integrated Family Support Services (IFST) 280 -43 237 -43 -15.36 
Delivering Transformation (Collaborative Regional Change 
Agenda) 62 -62 

62 
0 0.00 

Cwm Taf Autism Service 0 0 0 0 0.00 
Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) Services 74 6 80 6 8.11 
Cwm Taf Reflect Project 19 0 19 0 0.00 

  1,219 -7 1,184 -35 -2.87 

            
Adult Social Services           
Adult Social Care           
Adult Services Management 81 8 82 1 1.23 
Social Care Client Service Strategies 24 6 22 -2 -8.33 
Health Park Building Costs 163 1 163 0 0.00 

  268 15 267 -1 -0.37 

            
Assessment & Care Management Services           
Social Work Team 1,163 387 1,160 -3 -0.26 

  1,163 387 1,160 -3 -0.26 

            
Initial Support Services           
ISS Management 69 23 69 0 0.00 
Initial Adult Services 234 74 234 0 0.00 
Initial Response Services 559 332 566 7 1.25 
Community Occupational Therapy 299 77 292 -7 -2.34 
Telecare / Telehealth Services (Assistive Technologies) 107 16 100 -7 -6.54 

  1,268 522 1,261 -7 -0.55 

            
Supported and Accommodation Services           
MTCBC Homes for the Elderly 1,737 660 1,955 218 12.55 
MTCBC Group Home (Llysfaen Fach) 931 265 831 -100 -10.74 

  2,668 925 2,786 118 4.42 

            
Day Care Services           
Outside/Community Based Activities 238 76 233 -5 -2.10 
Day Centres 1,023 312 1,002 -21 -2.05 
Transport 247 45 239 -8 -3.24 

  1,508 433 1,474 -34 -2.25 

  Estimate Outturn Year End 
Projection 

  
Summary 31-Jul-19 Month 4 Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

            
Independent External Care Provision           
Supported Placements 3,079 1,354 3,053 -26 -0.84 
Shared Lives 350 83 360 10 2.86 
Independent Domiciliary Care 2,223 590 1,922 -301 -13.54 

Page 21



Direct Payments 1,846 579 1,718 -128 -6.93 
Independent Commissioned Day Services 206 59 268 62 30.10 
Independent Residential Establishments (IRE's) 5,021 1,924 5,376 355 7.07 
Extra Care Facility 254 82 256 2 0.79 

  12,979 4,671 12,953 -26 -0.20 

            
Children Social Services           
Children's Social Care           

Children's Social Care 130 139 135 5 3.85 

            
Children with Disabilities           

Children with Disabilities 732 238 733 1 0.14 

            
Children Looked After           
Looked After Children Team 492 166 521 29 5.89 
Looked After Children Educational Support (LACES) 170 50 181 11 6.47 
Fostering & Family Placement Team 473 146 470 -3 -0.63 
LAC Residential Placement Services 2,878 909 2,798 -80 -2.78 
LAC Fostering - Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA's) 1,741 497 2,022 281 16.14 
LAC Fostering - In House, Kinship & Emergency/Respite 
Fostering Services 1,563 

521 1,589 
26 1.66 

Children Looked After (Court, Legal & Professional) Services 100 65 193 93 93.00 
Leaving Care Support Services 590 157 539 -51 -8.64 
Adoption Services 109 34 107 -2 -1.83 
Advocacy Services 60 4 60 0 0.00 

  8,176 2,549 8,480 304 3.72 

            
Intake & Family Support Services           
Intake Team 440 119 417 -23 -5.23 
Child & Family Team 836 247 840 4 0.48 
Specialist Family Support 25 13 26 1 4.00 
Family Centre & Contact Services 467 158 457 -10 -2.14 
Children in Need 309 48 307 -2 -0.65 
Support Other Than Looked After Services 811 293 857 46 5.67 

  2,888 878 2,904 16 0.55 

            
Youth Justice Services           

Youth Justice Services (LASPO) 0 24 0 0 0.00 

            
Safeguarding           
Merthyr Tydfil Safeguarding Unit 69 22 68 -1 -1.78 
Independent Safeguarding Services 121 36 167 46 38.18 
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 293 45 276 -17 -5.80 

  483 104 511 28 5.79 

            

Social Services Grant -642 -642 -642 0 0.00 

            
            

Net Expenditure Social Services 33,307 10,323 33,666 359 1.08 

 
 

Page 22



 

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (As at 31 July 2019) Table 2 

Major Variances         

            

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation Action Taken to 
address 

    £'000 %   

1 Integrated Family Support 
Services (IFST) 

-43 -15.36 Underspend from 2018/19 joint 
service received. 

No Further action 
required. 

2 MTCBC Homes for the 
Elderly 

218 12.55 Gurnos House currently has 16 
residents and Bargoed House 
23. Income less than budgeted 
due to the number of residents 
and number of self funders. 
Staffing budgets are 
overspending by £143k 

Ongoing review with 
Home Manager, 
Principal Officer and 
Head of Service. 

3 MTCBC Group Home 
(Llysfaen Fach) 

-100 -10.74 A reduction in staff hours 
employed due to needs and 
the number of residents 
currently living at the home. 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

4 Independent Domiciliary 
Care 

-301 -13.54 Current demand for care hours 
lower than anticipated.  

Will continue to 
monitor.  

5 Direct Payments -128 -6.93 Full year affect from ending of 
7 Known. This is offset by 12 
additional packages above 
known service demand 
increases (-£60k).  Higher than 
anticipated recovery of 
balances (-£68k) 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

6 Independent 
Commissioned Day 
Services 

62 30.10 Additional financial burden is 
primarily from the part year 
effect of 3 new package of care 
and cost increases on known 
services. 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

7 Independent Residential 
Establishments (IRE's) 

355 7.07 Continuing increase in the 
number of residential 
placements within the 
Independent Sector (current 
population of 196) 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

8 LAC Residential 
Placement Services 

-80 -2.78 Forecasted changes to 2 
placements from "Closer to 
Home" strategy 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

9 LAC Fostering - 
Independent Fostering 
Agencies (IFA's) 

281 16.14 Budgeted for 45 IFA 
placements, currently 53 
placements.                                                                                                                                            

Will continue to 
monitor.  

10 Children Looked After 
(Court, Legal & 
Professional) Services 

93 93.00 Legal & Professional fees are 
currently projected to outturn 
higher than anticipated, due to 
higher Children Looked After 
levels 

Will continue to 
monitor, Head of 
Service looking at 
contract arrangements 
for professional 
services. 

11 Leaving Care Support 
Services 

-51 -8.64 Move on pathway plans from 
leaving care and step down 
services generating lower than 
an anticipated costs 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

12 Independent 
Safeguarding Services 

46 38.18 Increase in the number of 
children becoming CLA and 
the associated costs of 
independent reviews.   

Will continue to 
monitor. 

Page 23



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Social services wish to maintain a balanced budget by the end of the financial year. 

There are plans in place to look at the overspends and meeting regularly with 
Finance officers to discuss this. The next meeting to be held on the 4th October 
2019.  

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  

7.1 Regular meetings have been set up with social care management and finance 
officers to discuss the budget position and how we can ensure a balanced budget 
moving forward. Budget Board meets monthly and challenges officers when there 
are areas of overspend.  

 
7.2 There are plans in place with regards to overspends within the Residential homes for 

the elderly due to a reconfiguration of the service, which was agreed at Council in 
September 2019. Also a report will go to Council in October 2019 to ask for approval 
to consult with the public and staff regards day services in future. 

 
7.3 We continue to work regional with neighbouring authorities and the health board on 

transformation of services, both in adult and children services. The integrated Care 
Fund and Transformation Fund has allowed for innovation in providing services 
across the region, for example in children services developing a therapy service for 
looked after children and in adults developing phase 2 of Stay Well @ Home.  

 
7.4 Children Services are developing the Early Help Hub and the Supporting Family 

Change team to provide support to families in a timely manner, so as to enhance the 
services for prevention and early intervention. They have also developed a 
sustainability strategy. We want to recruit more in house foster carers to prevent the 
use of Independent foster carers, and ensure children are looked after closer to 
home to enable them to access support locally. We want to reduce the numbers of 
children/young people in residential care and provide the right support at the right 
time. Welsh Government have met with us in the past few months and we have a 
target to safely reduce looked after children over the next 12 months. This is why we 
are reconfiguring the service to enhance the offer of early intervention and 
prevention to families. If our numbers do reduce then this will impact on the budget 
and reduce court/professional fees, independent safeguarding services, placement 
costs and future leaving care services.   

 
 
LISA CURTIS-JONES 
DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER SOCIAL SERVICES 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution?  
 

 

 
Page 24



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board Annual Report 
2018/19 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to share with Scrutiny Committee the Annual Report for 

2018/19 for the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 That the Scrutiny Committee notes and endorses the Annual Report for 2018/19. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board has a statutory responsibility to publish an Annual 

Report on 31st July each year, to demonstrate its effectiveness in exercising its 
functions in the preceding financial year.  

 
3.2 The purpose of the Annual Report is twofold; it is a tool of accountability and a tool 

for evaluation. Accountability has three components: 
 

 accountability to the public; 
 accountability to the statutory partner agencies of the Board; and 
 accountability to the inspectorate bodies. 

 
3.3 The Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board is a statutory partnership made up of the 

agencies that are responsible for safeguarding children and adults at risk in Cwm 

Date Written 20th September 2019 

Report Author Nicola Kingham 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 8th October 2019 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Taf. The aim of the Board is to ensure that people of all ages are protected from 
abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm. This also involves preventing abuse, neglect 
or other kinds of harm from happening.  

 
3.4 The work of the Board is delivered via a Sub Group structure, which aims to support 

multi-agency safeguarding in Cwm Taf. The Lead Partner (Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council) employs the staff of the Board Business Unit and holds the 
Board budget, to which the statutory partner agencies contribute.   

 
3.5 The two key safeguarding objectives of protection and prevention underpin the work 

of the Board and inform the priorities each year. 
 
3.6 The Cwm Taf Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) sits within the structure of the 

Board to enhance safeguarding practice, with agencies working together in one 
place to receive all safeguarding referrals and share relevant agency information to 
make collaborative decisions.  

 
3.7 NEW REGIONAL FOOTPRINT FOR SAFEGUARDING FROM APRIL 2019 
 
3.8 In June 2018, the Welsh Government announced that from 1st April 2019, Cwm Taf 

University Health Board would be responsible for healthcare services in the Bridgend 
County Borough Council area. This meant that accompanying partnership structures 
in the delivery of social services across the Western Bay region joined with Cwm Taf, 
with the creation of a new Regional Safeguarding Board for the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg area. 

 
3.9 The first Annual Plan for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board was 

published on 30th April 2019 and the progress and outcomes of this will be published 
on 31st July 2020.  

 
 

4.0 SUMMARY OF KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2018/19 
 
4.1 The Board published an Annual Plan on 31 March 2018, setting out the priorities for 

safeguarding children, young people and adults in 2018/19. A summary of some of 
the key achievements included in the report is provided below: 

 
4.2 MASH 
 

 A review of the business support arrangements in the MASH was carried out 
which resulted in a generic team being established in April 2019. 
 

 A MASH Performance Management Framework and Audit Programme was 
implemented in April 2018. This has enabled us to evaluate MASH processes 
to evidence specific themes and findings relating to the reporting of 
safeguarding concerns. This included 7 detailed audit appraisals which 
evidenced areas of good practice as well as matters that required some 
escalation / improvement.  

 
 
4.3 Monitoring Safeguarding Performance  

Page 26



Each partner agency has a responsibility to report on the effectiveness of their 
agency’s contribution to the overall functions of the Board. This is done by a number 
of means, including audits, evaluations, inspection reports and data on safeguarding 
activity. Board and Sub Group members are actively encouraged to challenge 
information constructively, with the overall aim of continuous improvement. 
Examples this year included: 

 

 Training gaps in the voluntary sector due to a reduction in staffing capacity. 
This has been continually monitored by the Board’s Training and Learning 
Sub Group to address any gaps and manage associated risks. 

 Multi-agency Safeguarding Complaints – there was a low level of complaints 
in relation to adult safeguarding which evidences the effectiveness of our 
safeguarding processes. The Board received 1 complaint in respect of the 
multi-agency child protection process which was upheld by an independent 
complaints panel. 

 Police Powers of Protection - 31 reported during the year and the Board was 
assured that actions were appropriate and safeguards in place 

 The Board’s Multi Agency Child Sexual Exploitation Group Considered 28 
new cases of child sexual exploitation (CSE) in the last year and reported 107 
disruptions of CSE perpetrators, with 27 Child Abduction Warning Notices 
being served. 

 The Board published 1 Adult Practice Review during the year. This involved a 
case where both the victim and the perpetrator were adults at risk. The 
learning identified from this review is summarised in more detail in the report. 

 
4.4 Protocols and Procedures 
 

 Wales Safeguarding Procedures - representatives from the Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding Board have been actively involved in the development of the 
new Wales Safeguarding Procedures via a Project Board, Task Groups and 
Stakeholders Groups. The Procedures will be formally launched in November 
2019. 

 Local Safeguarding Protocols – 8 new/updated protocols and guidance 
documents approved in 2018/19  

 
4.5 Additional Safeguarding Activities 
 

 Following the publication of two Adult Practice Reviews in 2017, 
recommendations were made to develop a set of principles to support 
agencies in managing the transition of cases for young people into adulthood. 
These principles were developed and endorsed by the Board in 2018. 

 County Lines - in Cwm Taf there has been a strong focus on raising 
awareness of the nature of this harm and providing practitioners with the 
ability to spot the signs of criminal exploitation. 

 Radicalisation - the Board has worked closely with the Cwm Taf Community 
Safety Partnership to raise awareness of the PREVENT process to address 

Page 27



radicalisation. This was identified as a priority for the Board’s Training and 
Learning Group. 

 Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) - 
close working arrangements are in place between the Board and the 
VAWDASV Steering Group in Cwm Taf. Reports on training in accordance 
with the National Training Framework are presented to the Boards Training 
and Learning Group. 

 

4.6 Communications and Engagement 

Throughout 2018/19, the Board has raised awareness of its objectives through a 
number of ways, including: 

 Events 

 Literature 

 Partnership working 

 Dedicated Communications and Engagement Officer 

 Full details are included in the report. 

 

4.7 Safeguarding Training 

 The majority of the multi-agency safeguarding training is planned, delivered and co-
ordinated by the local authority-based Cwm Taf Training Department. In 2018/19, a 
total of 165 training courses were delivered to 2,806 delegates across the region. 

 

4.8 In addition to the standard children and adults Levels 1-3 safeguarding training, 
additional multi agency training included Substance Misuse, Child Sexual 
Exploitation, Transgender Awareness, Human Trafficking and Foetal Alcohol 
Disorder.  

 
4.9 Individual agencies also report to the Board on a quarterly basis with details of the 

safeguarding training activities taking place within their own organisation. Full details 
are included in the report. 

 
 

5.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

5.1  The Annual Report has been approved by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding 
Board and shared with the Welsh Government, the National Independent 
Safeguarding Board and the five other Regional Safeguarding Boards. 

 

5.2 A copy of the report has been published on the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding 
Board website www.cwmtafsafeguarding.org   

 
 

6.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

 Page 28

http://www.cwmtafsafeguarding.org/


 Best Start to Life 
Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the skills 
they need to be successful learners and confident individuals 

 

 Living Well 
People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they 
are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 

 
LISA CURTIS-JONES - DIRECTOR OF 
SOCIAL SERVICES/CHIEF OFFICER 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES – 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 
SERVICES  

 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Cwm Taf Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 

2018/19 
 

31 July 2019  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached work programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 27th September 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 8th October 2019 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 32



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 33



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 34



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

17th April 2019 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 17th April 2019  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


  

APPENDIX I 

Page 36



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Date / Timing 
PROPOSED 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

11th June 2019 

Annual Forward Work 
Programme (2019/20) 

Cllr. Bill Smith and 
Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for Social 
Services (2019/2020). 

Young Carers Annual 
Report (2018/19) 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on the 
performance within 2018/19, along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development 
and improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report and 
Plan (2018/19) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 

9th July 2019 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) Annual Report  
(2018/19) 

Annabel Lloyd / 
Lyndon Lewis  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency team which is 
made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, Education, Substance Misuse and 
Social Services; as well as other specific to the team.  The YOS deals with young people 
between the ages of 10 and 18 who are involved in the criminal justice system and those 
who are just on the periphery of becoming involved in the system. The Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) last presented a progress update report to scrutiny on 24th July 
2018 based on the Post Inspection Action Plan.   
 
The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the Cwm Taf 
region (2018/19), along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Reconfiguration of 
Homes 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / 
Chris Davies/ Lowri 
Morgan / Angela 
Edevane  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to include an update and feedback from the recent 
consultation and a detailed plan prior to its submission to Full Council.   
 

ACRF - Annual Report 
on Social Services 
(2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davis / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 
/ Lorna Townsend  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Draft ACRF was brought to Scrutiny on 7th May 2019 to provide 
comment and challenge as a part of the Consultation process. This report should contain 
all further updates from any additional consultation and previous comments made by 
Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council.  
 

P
age 37



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Mental Health 
Inspection (2019/20?) 
Feedback Report 

Angela Edevane / 
Alyson Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The report should consider the strengths and development areas 
highlighted within the recent Mental Health Inspection feedback report, and also to 
consider key areas for improvement within Merthyr Tydfil for 2019/20. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

17th September 2019 

Mid-year update on 
Social Services 
Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments Report.  
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
The annual report (2018/19) was presented to Scrutiny on 12th March 2019. The 
committee has requested a mid-year (2019/20) report be brought back for consideration 
and challenge. The committee expects further information on complaints within the 
report (e.g. the areas the complaints were made, what processes etc. has been 
changed/introduced in order to reduce the number of complaints etc.).  
 

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 

Angela Edevane/Lowri 
Morgan 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

A mid-year update on 
Cwm Taf Integrated 
Family Support Team 
(IFST) (2019/20) 
This report is no longer 
required as MTCBC has 
withdrawn from this 
collaboration (agreed 
by Chair on 5th Aug 
2019).   

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a regional mid-year position statement on the Cwm Taf 
IFST services, and also provide an update on the Edge of Care Service (EOC) within MTCBC. 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 1: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 

P
age 38



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

8th October 2019 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1 and Quarter 2, areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.    

A mid-year update on 
the Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 
and Plan (2019/20) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

10th December 2019 

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 
2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

SS&WB Regional Plan 
– progress update 
(2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

A mid-year update on 
Young Carers 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with a mid-year update on 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Young Carers.  Details should also be 
provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome or how 

P
age 39



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

you plan to overcome them.  

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 2: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

21st January 2020 

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3 update 

Angela Edevane Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
Update 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  To provide data and performance in relation to Corporate 
Parenting 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1, 2 and 3, and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

10th March 2020 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3/end of year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a Quarter 3/end of year 
update on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 3: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

P
age 40



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

5th May 2020 

Annual Complaints 
Report (2019/20) 
End of year update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
A mid-year report (2019/20) was presented to Scrutiny in September 2019. The 
committee has requested an end of year report (2019/20) for consideration and 
challenge. The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

ACRF Report (2019/20) 
(consultation) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a consultation workshop with Scrutiny Members; a 
report summarising key messages from the Annual Report on Social Services 2019/2020 
will be presented for information. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

LAC Work (Welsh 
Government visit)  

This would be better delivered in the form of a presentation when the information is available. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Fostering Inspection 
Report  and Fostering 
Framework Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Advocacy Annual 
Report  

 

P
age 41



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Self Evaluation Reports  Early indication would suggest there are three reports throughout the scrutiny cycle (1 report per SER question). 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Possibility of a Joint 
Scrutiny with Learning 
and LGES  

Possible topics to consider:  

 Educational Achievements of Children Looked After (CLA) and Care Leavers; 

 Tackling Poverty; 

 Community Zones; and 

 Early Years Learning. 

 Violence against 
Women Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Annual 
report 2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  
/ Annabel Lloyd / 
Cllr Chris Davies / 
Deborah Evans 
(SMT) / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is a member of the Cwm Taf 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Steering Group, 
which is the lead partnership taking forward the Cwm Taf regions implementation of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

The Committee would like to receive a summary report providing a position statement on 
‘Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence’ within the Cwm Taf region 
(2018/19). The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

P
age 42


	Agenda
	3 Children’s Services Strategy
	Childrens Strategy - Appendix 1.pdf

	4 Budget update for Scrutiny Committee
	5 Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board Annual Report 2018/19
	6 Forward Work Programme 2019/20
	Appendix 1


